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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To,
The Members,
SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
Ahmedabad

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 315t March 2024, and the statement of Profit
and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significate accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statemenis give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in Indfa, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilifies under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’'s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, hut does not include the
Standalone Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears o be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility fof the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
s: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that
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are reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matters

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, were audited by NM V
& Associates under the Companies Act, 2013, who, vide their report dated September 15, 2023, expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure-A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(@

We have sought and obfained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {(Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to our best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us :

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

(i  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protaction Fund by the Company.

(ivli (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(*Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uliimate
Beneficiaries;

(b). The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate} have been received by the
ompany from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
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understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{c}) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to belisve that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year which requires any
compliance with raspect to section 123 of the Act.

(vi) Based on our examinaticn which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO.
[Firm Registration No. 101895Wj
Chartered Accountants

“Nolul Cluorcet
OHIT K. CHOKSI
artner
Mem. No. 31103
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: 24024402 BKDR™MZ 4ol

Date : _ h SEP 2024
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Annexure - “A”  to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on Standalone Financial Statements
of SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED

(i) (@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibie assets.

(b}  The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so to cover
all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property and accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(i){c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d)  According to infarmation and explanation given to us, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the year, Accordingly, clause 3 (i)(d) of the Order
in not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, clause 3(i){e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i) (@) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any inventory
and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b)  According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned any
working capital limits exceeding 5 crores from any banks or financial institutions during the year on
the basis of s of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ii}{b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(i)  During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, to any party. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(iii)(a) to
(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any transaction on which the provisions of section 185 of the Act are applicable. Further with
respect to the loans and investments made, the company has complied with the provisions of section 186
of the Act. However, the company has not provided any guarantees or securities to any person.

(v)  According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits within
the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(viy  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause {vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii} (a) According to the information given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues and Company had no arrears of such outstanding
statutory dues as at 31st March, 2024 for a pericd mare than six months from the date they became
payable, other than as reported hereunder:-

Period to which

Nature of | Amountin Date of
I Name of the Statute the Dues | Rs. Lakhs the amount Due Date Payment
[ relates
| Goods and Services | GST ] ' 1207 April
| TaxAct, 2017 | Payable | 1328 Mar-23 | 2023
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(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has no disputed
outstanding statutory dues as at 31st March, 2024.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed
any unrecorded transaction as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1861. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3({viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulied in the
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared as
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

{(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us, loans were applied for the purpose for
which the same were obtained.

{(d) On an overali examination of the standalone Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

{e} On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidianes.

()  The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(@)  Accordingly to information and explanation provided to us, the Company has not raised moneys by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x){a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a)  Accordingly to information and expianation provided to us, no fraud by the Company or no fraud on
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(xi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{(b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi}{b) of the Order are not appiicable
to the Company.

(c} The Company is not required to establish a vigil mechanism for their directors and employees to
report their genuine concerns or grievances in accordance with provisions of section 177(9) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not falling under ambit of
provisions contained in section 177 of the Act, the relevant Clause is not applicable. Further transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act and details of transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
In our apinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company is not falling

auditdg Yaccordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv)(a) & (b) the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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According to the information and expfanations given fo us, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is
not applicable.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a}, (b) and (¢} of the Order are not applicable.

{b}  According to the information and explanations given fo us, the Company does not have any CIC as
part of the group.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provide to us, the Company has not
incurred cash losses during the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year

{xviil) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and there are no issues, objections or

(xix)

{xx)

concerns raised by the outgoing auditors which needs our consideration.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the information available and
explanation provided up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to comply with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3({xx) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO.
[Firm Registration No. 101895W)]
Chartered Accountants

’%?G’{ul, Cliotere
bg';ﬁ CHOKSI
Farser

Mem. No. 31103

Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: 24021107 BKDAMZ FH0)

Date

- = &, SEP 7024
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on Standalone financial statements of
SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of SATTRIX
INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 315t March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standaione financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal  financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the
nsk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of Standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements

A company's internat financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation Standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to standaione financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
Handalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting pringiples, and that

ts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
Agement and directors of the company; and
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{3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on Standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future pericds are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become
Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at 315t March 2024, based on the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO.
[Firm Registration No. 101835W]
Chartered Accountants

ol Clioccee
OHIT K. CHOKSI

artder
MemNo. 31103
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN; 240341032 BKDQMZ F4ol

Date : o ’-I- SEP 2024




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED

[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Note As at As at
Particulars No. 31st March, 2024 3tst March, 2023
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital 3 500.00 1.00
Reserves and Surplus 4 717.80 948.60
1,217.80 949.60
Non Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 5 15.38 0.21
Long- Term Provisions 6 19.86 -
35.24 0.21
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 7 8.32 194.34
Trade Payables
To Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises ) )
To Others 8 734.23 848.91
Other Current Liabilities 9 165.52 211.14
Short Term Provisions 10 15.05 22.16
923.12 1,276.55
TOTAL 2,176.15 2,226.36
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 11A 138.87 127.93
Intangible Assets 11B 208.41 1.81
Intangible Assets under development 11C 198.56 142.03
Capital Work In Progress 11D 35.34 -
Non-Current Investments 12 13.43 11.19
Defetred Tax Assets {Net) 13 10.49 6.33
Long-Term Loans and Advances 14 143.84 84.71
Other Non Current Assets 15 12.50 2.12
761.14 376.11
Current Assets
Trade Receivahles 16 596.73 1,351.96
Cash and Bank Balances 17 614.35 25.63
Short term Loans and Advances 18 2.33 426.56
Other Current Assets 19 201.60 46.10
1,415.01 1,850.25
TOTAL 2,176.15 2,226.36
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our attached report of even date.
FOR G.K CHOKSI & CO.
[Firm Registration No. 101895W]
Cha d Accountants

ROMNT K.JCHOKSI

er
Mem. Na. 031103

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : = [i'

; IN GAJJAER
tanagrg Director

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

i

DIN No.: 06688019
Place : Ahmedabad

Date |
K -

AK GAJJAR

O

EP 2024

Whole-time director g crFo
DIN No.: 07737921

W~
RINA KUMARI
Company Secrefary



SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Note For the Year ended For the year ended

Particulars No. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
INCOME

Revenue from Operations 20 3,871.94 3,237.84

Other Income 21 96.18 83.64
TOTAL INCOME 3,968.12 3,321.48
EXPENSES

Purchase 22 2,524,08 1,669.01

Employee Benefit Expenses 23 752.84 920.10

Finance Costs 24 34.59 3549

Depreciation & Amortisation 25 34.75 16.30

Other Expenses 26 257.10 164.91
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,603.36 2,805.81
Profit / (Loss) before tax 364.76 515.67
Tax Expense

Current Tax 96.00 146.47

Adjustment related to previous years 473 -

Deferred Tax {4.17) (3.10)

96.56 143.37

Profit / (Loss) after tax 268.20 372.30
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share 27 5.36 745

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date.

[Firm Reglstration No. 101895W]

Chartgred Accountants ‘-\)‘(%{H / )

FOR G.K CHOKSI & CO. FOR AND ON BEHA\I? THE BOARD

ROMT K..CHOKS) SA IN GAJJAER RONAK GAJJAR
ner Managing Director Whole-time director & CFO
Mem. No. 031103 DIN No.: 06688619 DIN No.: 07737921

\
w7
RINA KUMARI

Company Secretary

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad

Da’te:,_,’_t SEP ?”24 PEL B :_L SEP 2025




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the year ended
Particulars st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit / (Loss) for the year before taxation 364.76 515.67
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation 34.75 16.30
Interest income on Fixed deposits {0.91} (0.57)
Interest income on loan given (86.51) -
Training Fees expensed off 16.33 -
Provision for Doubtful Dabt {10.48) =
Finance Costs paid 34.59 35.49
Operating profit before working capital changes 352,53 566.89
Changes in Working Capital:
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables (114.88) 614.28
Increase / (Decrease) Other Current Liabilities (45.62) 211.15
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 12.75 (138.09)
(Increase) / Decrease in Short Term loans & Advances 18.32 (48.07)
(Increase} f Decrease in Trade Receivables 765.70 {919.98)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets {160.22) 179.29
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current Assets (10.38) -
465.87 (101.41)
Cash generated from operations 818.40 465.48
Taxes Paid (net of refunds) {155.13) {231.18)
Net cash from operating activities (A} 663.27 234.30
B  Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of PPE, Intangible Asset, Intangible Assets under
development & Capital Work In Progress (360.50) (149.17)
Proceeds From Sale of PPE - 0.48
{Purchase) / Sale of Investments {1.94) (9.77)
Repayment received on Loan Granted 405.91
Interest Income Received 86.51 -
Interest income on Fixed deposits 0.91 0.57
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 130.89 (157.89)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds From / (Repayment of) Borrowings {170.85) (41.33)
Finance Costs Paid (34.59) (35.49)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (205.44) (76.82)
Net Increasel(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (Ay+{B}+(C} 588.72 (0.40)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 25.63 26.04
Ciosing cash and cash equivalents 614.35 2563
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 7.44 7.46
Balances with Bank 594.66 5.19
Other Bank Balances 12.25 12.98

614.35 25.63




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March, 2024

Explanatory Notes to Cash Flow Statement

1 The Gash Fiow Statement is prepared under Indirect Methed in accordance with the Accounting Standard 3 as
prescribed by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2 In Part A of the Cash Flow Statement, figures in brackets indicate deductions made from the net profit for deriving
the cash flow from operating activities, In Part B & Part C, figures in brackets indicate cash outflows.

3 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year's presentation.

FOR G.K CHOKSI & CO. FOR AND ON BEHALFHI:IF JHE BOARD

[Firm Registration No. 101895W] L4
Chaftejed Accountanis L\“\\\ (\5 / v

54 IN GAJJAER
Mamaging Direcior
DIN No.: 06688019

ONAK GAJJAR
Whole-time director & cFoO
DIN No.: 07737921

=
RINA KUMARI
Company Secretary

Place ; Ahmedabad

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : o l}

Pee fw by SEP 2024



SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

241

2.2

23

24

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sattrix Information Security Limited was incorporated on 16th September, 2013 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 with the Regisirar of Companies, Ahmedabad. The Company’s registered office is
situated at 28 Damubhai colony, Bhattha, Paldi, Ahmedabad, Gujarat, Iindia, 380007. The company is
primarily involved in helping organizations to protect their data from unauthorized access against
unwanted security threats, Company’s data security solutions aim to eliminate data privacy risks to make
business processes secure and run smoothly.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statement are prepared and presented in accordance with Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of
accounting, uniess otherwise stated. This financial statement has been prepared as going concern and
comply, in alfi material respects, with the Accounting Standards as prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements requires certain estimates and assumptions. These estimates
and assumptions affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference
between the actual result and estimates are recognized in the period in which the resuits are known /
materialized.

Property, Plant & Equipment and Depreciation

All Property, Plant & Equipment are accounted for at cost less depreciation.

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight fine basis over the useful lives of
assets specified in Part C of Schedule Ii to the Companies Act 2013 read with the relevant notifications

issued by the Department of Company affairs.

Depreciation on assets acquired ! disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference
to the date of addition / disposal.

In accordance with the provisions contained in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 components of an
asset, which have significant cost to total cost of assets and its own useful life, are required to be
depreciated separately over its useful life. Any such component, if identified by the management based on
technical evaluafion, is depreciated separately over its own useful life.

Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible assets purchased are initially measured at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its
purchase price including any costs directly attributable to making the asset ready for their intended use.

Intangible assets are amortised over management estimate of its useful life of 3 years on straight line
basis.




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

2.5

26

2.7

2.8

Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified
as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Investments

Long term investments are carried at cost less provision, if any, for permanent diminution in value of such
investments,

Current investments are carried at lower of cost or market value. Diminution in value is charged in the
statement of profit and loss account.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue on sales of product is recognised when risk and reward are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
products.

Revenue from contracts priced on time basis are recognised when services are rendered. Revenue from
fixed fee contracts is recognised when milestones are achieved and no reasonable uncertainty as to its
realization exists.

Interest income is recognised on time proportionate basis.

Dividend income is accounted for as and when the right to receive is established.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the year-end are translated at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date, and exchange gain or losses arising have been transferred to
Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are valued at the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of transaction. Any gains or losses arising due to exchange difference on leng term foreign currency
monetary items are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any gains or losses arising due to exchange differences at the time of settlement of payables are
accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

B




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Financial Statement

2.9

2.10

2.41

212

Employee Benefits
. Post-Employment Benefit:

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Labour Weifare Fund as
applicable to the company and are accounted for on accrual basis.

. Defined Benefit Plans:

Liability towards gratuity is accrued based on actuarial valuatiocn using the projected Unit Credit
Method at the balance sheet date. Actuarial Gains and Losses are recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Taxation

Provision for income-tax is based on the taxable income computed in accordance with the provision of the
Income-tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the
difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized on unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses based on
virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income wiil be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized.

Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 -
Earnings Per Share prescribed by the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Provision, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.
Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent Assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

{a)

()

(c)

(d)

{e)

Share Capital

(amaunt in Rs Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Authorised
Equity Shares
Number of Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 75,00,000 10,000
Equity Share Capital (in Rs. Lakhs) 750.00 1.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity Shares
Number of Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 50,00,000 10,000
Equity Share Capital (in Rs. Lakhs) 500.00 1.00
Note :

1. During the period of five financial years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the company has not:
(i) Allofted any equity shares pursuant to any contract without payment being received in cash;
(i) Bought back any equity shares.

2. As on October 24th, 2023, the company has issued bonus shares to its existing shareholders in the ratio of 499:1 fully paid
up.

Reconciliation of number of shares

Equity Shares
Number of Equity Shares

Particulars 2023-24 2022 - 2023
At the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Add :
Bonus share issued 49,90,000 -
Exercise of Share Option under ESQOS / ESOP = -
Shares issued in Business Combination - -

49,90,000 -
Less:
Shares bought back / redeemed etc. s -
As the end of the year 50,00,000 10,000

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions

The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of Rs.10/- per share. The shareholders are entitled to
receive dividend on their shares, as and when the same is declared by the Company. Each holder of equity share is entitled to
one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled fo receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of Shareholdings

Equity Shares ——
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 3ist March, 2023
Particulars % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares
Shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Sachhin Gajjaer 20.00% 10,00,000 20.00% 2,000
c
Ronak Gajjar  , AN 79.99% 39,990,975

l‘_ fr‘

|1

e |




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(f} Disclosures relating to promoter's holding

Shares held by promoters as on 31st March, 2024

. F
Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares = chang;:::lrmg L)
Sachhin Gajjaer 10,00,000 20.00% 49900%
Ronak Gajjar 39,99,975 79.99% 49900%
Shares held by promoters as on 31st March, 2023
. o, 1

Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares e changyee::mng G
Sachhin Gajjaer 2,000 20.00% No Change
Ronak Gajjar 8,000 80.00% No Change

4 Reserves & Surplus
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss
Opening Balance 948.60 576.30
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 268.20 372.30
Less: Utilised for bonus shares™* {499.00) -
Total : 717.50 948.60

Note* - As on October 24th, 2023, the company has issued bonus shares to its existing shareholders in the ratio of 499:1 fully
paid up.

§ lLong Term Borrowings
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Secured Loans
Vehicle Loans From Bank
ICICI Bank 22.60 2.59
Less : Current Maturity of Long term Borrowing (7.22) (2.38)
Total : 156.38 0.21
Nature of Security
The Vehicle loans are secured against the Vehicles.
Terms of Loans
Particulars {(Amount in Rs. Lakhs) Terms of Repayment R oF et
i {per annun_q!n___r
Loan from ICICI Bank - MG 22 3% | Repayment in 80 monthly installment 9.30%
Loan from ICICI Bank - Honda 0.21 | Repayment in 60 Monthly installment 8.95%
2260 W

6 Long Term Provisions
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars Hat March, 2024 3Mst March, 2023

Provision for Gratuity 19.86

Total : 19.86




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 Short Term Borrowings
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Secured
Current Maturity of Long term Borrowing 7.22 2.38
Working Capital Loan *
ICIC! Bank 1.10 110.90
Unsecured Loans
Overdraft facility & Cash Credit From Bank #
ICICI Bank - 81.06
Total : 8.32 194.34

Note* - Working capital facilities from banks are secured by Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of current assets and
receivables of the company and also secured by exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of immovable properties in the
name of relative of the directors of the company.

Note# - Overdraft facilities of the banks are secured by personal guarantees of directors of the company and cross
collateralization by way of extension of equitable morigage charge over the immovahle properties of Directors of the company.
As the security befongs to director of the company hence classified as unsecure loan.
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 Other Current Liabilities

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Statutory Liabilities 58.64 99.87
Accrued Salary & Benefits 98.06 98.79
Other Payable 8.82 12.31
Advance from customer - 0.17
Total : 165.52 211.14

10 Short Term Provisions

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Provision for Gratuity

15.05 2216

Total : 15.05 22,16
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Non-Current Investments

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Trade Investments

Investment in Equity Shares - Unquoted
Susidiary Companies

Sattrix Information Security DMCC

(50 shares of AED 1,000/- each)

Sattrix Information Security Inc,
(100 shares of USD 20/- each}

Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investment and its Market Value

{i) Aggregate amount

(i} Market Value
Aggregate Amount Of Ungquoted Investments
Aggregate Amount of provision for Diminution in Value

13 Deferred Tax Assets {Nef)

11.71 9.77
1.42 142
Total : 13.13 11.19
13.13 11.19

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10.49 6.33
Total : 10.49 6.33
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference of book depreciation and tax depreciation {6.77) (6.33)
{6.77) {8.33)
Deferred Tax Assets
Disallowance ufs. 43(b), allowable on payment basis 14.62 -
Provision for Doutful debt aliowed o Actual basis 2.64 -
17.26 -
10.49 (6.33)
14 Long Term Loans & Advances
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Advance Tax / TDS Receivable (Net of Provision) 136.48 84.71
Advance o Capital vendors 7.36 -
Total : 143.84 84.71
The amount dues by :
Directors NIL NIL
Officers either severally or jointly with other persons NIL NIL
Firms or private companies in which any director is partner or NIL NIL
director or a member,
15 Other Non Current Assets
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
As at As at

CHORS
Particulars @ N
&

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

Security Deposit{f} 7
AN <

Total :
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17

18

19

SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED

[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Cash and Bank Balances

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 3st March, 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand 7.44 7.46
Balances with Bank

in Current Accounts 270.46 5.19

in Fixed Deposits (with maturity less than 3 months) 324.20 -
Other Bank Balances
Balances with Bank

in Fixed Deposits (with maturity from 3 to 12 months) 12.25 12.98

Total : 614.35 25.63
Short Term Loans and Advances
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31ist March, 2023
Unsecured Loan - Repayable on demand (See note below)

To Related Party (Refer note 30) - 405.91
Deposits - EMD 0.85 19.85
Loans and Advances to staff 1.48 0.80

Total : 2.33 426.56
The amount dues by :
Directors NIL NIL
Officers either severally or jointly with other persons NIL NIL
Firms or private companies in which any director is partner or - 405.91
director or a member.
Note : Details of Loan Given
Rate of b5 at As at
Name of Pa P
Yy Interest Hrpose 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Sattrix Software Solutions Pvi. Ltd. 7.30% Working Capital - 405.91
Other Current Assets
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs]
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Prepaid Expenses 83.14 10.37
Interest Accrued and Due 77.95 -
Advance to Vendors 0.48 0.26
Balance with Revenue Authorities 0.38 -
Other Receivables 39.65 35.47
7 % EHOASN Total : 46.10
s
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 Revenue from Operations

(Amount in Rs, Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended

31st March, 2023

Sale of Product 2,849.92 1,805.85
Sale of Services 1,022.02 1,431.99
Total : 3,871.94 3,237.84
Breakup of Sales
For the Year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

Sale of Product
License

Sale of Services
MSS-Ext Infra
MSSEXTS (External SOC)
MSSINTS (internal SOC)
MSSMGTI (Mang. TAC & Infra)
Professional Service

21 Other Income

2,849.92 1,805.85
310.83 193.02
434.36 540.12
165.44 160.02

10.81 66.45
100.59 472.39
3,871.94 3,237.84

(Amount in Rs, Lakhs}

Particulars

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

Interest Income

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Fluctuation
Prior Period Income (Refer note 33)
Other Misc Income

Sundary Balance Write Back

22 Purchase

35.95 7.64
= 6.95
56.42 =
3.81 -
- 69.05
Total : 96.18 83.64

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

For the Year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Purchase of Product 2,393.33 1,669.01
Splunk Services 130.75 -

Total : 2,524.08 1,669.01

Disaggregated information

For the Year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

Purchase of Product

License 2 SHOZ

VA
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2,393.33

1,669.01

35315

1,669.01



SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
23 Employee Benefit Expenses

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the year enduxi

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Salaries & Wages 1,010.96 999.15
Contribution to provident & other funds 31.22 45.65
Less:

Allocated to Intangible Assets under development {289.34) {125.70)
Total : 752.84 920.10

24 Finance Costs
(Amouni in Rs. Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Interest Expense 26.85 30.19

Other Borrowing Costs 7.74 530
Total : 34.59 35.48

25 Depreciation & Amortisation
{Amount in Rs. Lakhis)

For the Year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 24.51 15.19
Amortisation of Intangible Asset 10.25 1.11

Total : M5 16.30

26 Other Expenses
{Amount in Rs, Lakhs)

For the Year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Legal & Professional Fees 15.67 32.93
Office & General Expenses 40.03 35.36
Rent Expense 21.85 17.76
Travelling & Conveyance Expense 75.24 57.51
Sales and Business Promotion 35.41 4.23
fnsurance 7.32 6.17
Repairs and Maintenance 4.69 6.14
Rates & Taxes 1.82 0.26
Auditor's Remuneration 5.00 -
Provision for Doubfful Debts 10.48 -
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Fluctuation 3.97 -
Prior Period Expense (Refer Note 33) 29.14 =
Miscellaneous Expenses 6.43 4.55
CHOA SN Total :
ol
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATICON SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Auditor's Remuneration includes:-

Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

. For the Year ended For the Year ended
fagicttam 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Statutory Audit Fees 5.00 -

Total : 5.00 -

27 Earning Per Share

For the Year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Profit / (Loss) after tax (Rs. in Lakhs.) 268.20 372.30
Weighted average Number of equity shares( No.) (Refer note below) 50,00,000 50,00,000
Nominal value of the share (Amount.in Rs.} 10 10
Basic / diluted earnings per share (Rs.} 5.36 7.45

Note: Considering the impact of bonus share issued during the year retrospectively.

-
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
28  Gratuity

(@) Gratuity

The Company offers gratuity plan for its qualified employees which is payable as per the requirements of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employees on retirement or on termination
of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting.

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows ;

Particulars Valuation as at
March 31, 2024
Liscount Rate 7.11%
Expecled rale(s) of salary increase 10.00%
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
2023-24
Particulars Gratuity
Changes in the present value of obligation
1. Present value of obligation {Opening)} 2216
2. Interest cost 219
3. Current service cost 3.59
4. Benefits Paid {1.89)
5. Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 1.06
8. Prior Period Expense 7.81
7. Present value of Obligation (Closing) 34.91
Changes in the fair value of plan assets
1. Present value of plan assets (Opening) -
2. Expected return on plan assets -
3. Fund Added (Contributions) -
4. Benefits Paid -
5. Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on the Plan Assets -
6. Fair Value of Plan Assets (Closing) -
Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of assets
1. Present value of funded obligation as at the year end 34.91
2. Fair value of plan assets as al year end -
3. Funded (Asset)/ Liability recognised in the balance sheet 34.91
Expenses recognised in the profit & loss account
1.Current service cost 3.50
2. Interest Cost 2.19
3. Expected return on plan assets -
4. Net Actuarial {gain)/ loss recognized in the year 1.06
5. Prior Period Expense 7.81
6. Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and loss 14.64

Note : The campany till previous year has accounted gratuity on cash basis due to which no comparative figures have been reported.
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Fermerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023

Principal amount and inferest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year.

1.62 -

The ameount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and Mediurn
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier NIL NIL
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified NIL NIL
under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (As amended).

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and NIL NIL

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 (As
amended).

NiL NIL

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
comipany. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

32

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e}

Contingent Liability and Commitments
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Financial Year
2023-24 2022-23

A. Contingent Liabilities = -
B. Commitment 133.53 -

Other Regulatory information

Title deeds of Inmovabie Property
The Company does not have any Immovable property during any of the year reported.

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Ine Lompany has not revalued any ot its FProperty, Flant and Equipment and Intangible Assets durng any of tne year reported.

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
The Company has not granted any loans or Advances to promoters, direclors, KMPs and the related paries except as mentioned below:

{Amount In Rs. Lakhs)

Loans and advances granted to
Related Parties

Type of Borrower

Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2024 2023
mmmrmmmmmmumg _ 405.91
[FETCETTENE 0 e (OTal LOans 2N AUvVATces T INe NamreE oT 10ans : 100.00%
Capital- Work- in Progress (CWIP)
As at 31st March 2024 (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Amount of CWIP for a period of
Total

CwiP Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Years
Frojects in progress 35.34 - d - 35.34
Projects tempaorarily suspended

Total 35.34 - - - 35.34

As at 31st March 2023
The Company does not have any Capital Work- in Progress as at 31st March 2023.

Intangible assets under development
The Company does not have any Intangible assets under development as at the end of the year except as mentioned below:

As at Year ended 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Amount in intangible assets under
Intangible assets under development for a period of
Total
development
Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Years
Projécts in progress 108.56 - - - 19855 |
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Tofal 198.56 - - - 198.56
As at Year ended 31sf March, 2023
Amount in intangible assets under
Intangible assets under development for a period of Tol.
development a
Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 Years
Projects in progress ‘ 14203 - - - i i
Projects temporar 5 ed = - Z T =
142.03 - -




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M

(g)

(h)

(i)

G

(k)

]

{m)

()

(o)

{3

Details of Benami Property held

The Company does not hold any benami property as defined under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the_
rules made thereunder. No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made there under.

Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns /
statements filed by the Company with such banks are materially in agreement with the books of accounts.

Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender during any of the year reported.

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any tfransactions with struck off companies during any of the year reported.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies {ROC)
The company does not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Cempany is in compiiance with number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Approved scheme of arrangements

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during any of the year reported.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invesied funds {either borrowed funds or share premium or kind of funds) to any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities (Infermediaries) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary
shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the Company
(Uitimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the uitimate beneficiaries,

The Company have not recsived fund from any persons or entities, Including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{if) provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

Undisclosed Income

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during any of the year in the tax assessmenis under the Income Tax Act, 1961

Details of Crypte Currency or Virtual Gurrency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during any of the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company does not fall under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly is not required to spend any
amount for CSR.
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33  Prior Period Income and Expense

Prior Period Income {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particular Amount Nature of Incomeé

Interest Income on loan granted 56.42 |Interest income on loan granted to group company not accounted in earlier years
Prior Period Expense {Amount in Rs, Lakhs)
Particular Amount Nature of Expense

Audit fees 5.00 | Statutory audit fees for FY 22-23 and 21-22 not accounted in earlier years

Gratuity Expense 7.81 |Gratuity expense of earlier years as per actuarial valuation

Training Fees 16.33 |Expensed off during the year which has been incorrectly capitalised in sarlier year

34 Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post- employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazetle of India. However, the date on which the Code will
come into effect has not been notified, The company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related
impact after the Code becomes effective

35 Statement of Management

{a) The current assets, loans and advances are good and recoverable and are approximately of the values, if realized in the ordinary courses of
business unless and to the extent stated otherwise in the Accounts, provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of amount
reasonably necessary. There are no contingent liabilities excepl those stated in the notes, if any.

{b) Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement read together with the schedules to the accounts and notes thereon,
are drawn up so as to disclose the information required under the Companies Act, 2013 as well as give a frue and fair view of the statement
of affairs of the Company as at the end of the year and results of the Company for the year under review.

36  Allamounts in Financial Sialements are represented in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated.
37  The previous year's figures have been regrouped, reworked and reclassified where ever necessary.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

[Firm Regjstration No. 101895W)] . /-'

SACH GAJJAER
Managing Director
DIN No.: 06688019

NAK GAJJAR
Whale-time director & cro
DIN No.: 07737921

¥
RINA KUMARI
Company Secrelary

Place : Ahmedabad

Date: _ '_} SEP

y Place : Ahmedabad .

Date : | <! 1/
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Chartorod SHocantants
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Opp. Jayantilal Park BRTS, Off. Ambli BRTS Hoad, Abmedabad 380 D54
Dial : 91 -79-8819 8900 - 901 : E-mail ; info@gkecco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To,
The Members,
SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
Ahmedabad

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of SATTRIX INFORMATION
SECURITY LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as the "Group”), which comprise the Consolidated balance sheet as at 31% March 2024,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of significate accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principies generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, its consolidated profit and its consolidated
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Fthics issued by the [nstitute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other Information

The holding company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial
Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurancze conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The holding company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financiai Sta‘e_.m_linls
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that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Group in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Group abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levef of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. fdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaiuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the Censolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

he audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
ng our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them alf relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2023, were audited by N M V
& Associates under the Companies Act, 2013, who, vide their report dated September 15, 2023, expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

We did not audit the financial information of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial information reflect total assets of
Rs. 268.46 lakhs as at 31%t March 2024, total revenues of Rs. 233.88 lakhs and net cash flows amounting fo
Rs. (68.46) lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
This financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited Management Certified Financial Information.
According to the information and explanation given to us by the Management, this financial information
reflects the true and correct financial position and the state of affairs.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above maiters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the group so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts}
Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding company as
on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors of the
holding company are disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

()  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements of the holding company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A",

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to our best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us :

(i) The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

(i) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the holding company.




G K Choksc & Go.

Cfeecarniant

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(b)

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the holding company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (*Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
holding company (“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the holding company from any person or entity, including foreign entity {("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
holding company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party
(*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (&)
and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year which
requires any compliance with respect to section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination which included test checks the holding company, being the
company in the group on which such compliance is applicable, has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the holding company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, with respect to the matters specified in
clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, the provisions of the Order are not appliable to
the subsidiaries, being incorporated outside India, inciuded in the consolidated financial statements
and hence not commented upon.

FOR G. K.CHOKSI & CO.
[Firm Registration No. 101895W)]
Chartered Accountanits

blul Cletse

T K. CHOKSI
artner
Mem. No. 31103

Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: 2403 1t03 BKDQNA 6525

Date .:‘l‘_ SEP 2[]24
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Annexure - “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on Consolidated financial statements
of SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial confrols with reference to Consolidated financial statements of
SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED (“the Holding Company”} as of 31% March 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of Consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements criteria established
by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate intenal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Holding company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable fo an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Contrals and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of Consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements

A Holding company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Holding company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that

(1)  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Holding company;

(2) prowide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
Cananhidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
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receipts and expenditures of the Holding company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Holding company; and

(3)  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Holding company's assets that could have a material effect on Consolidated
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference fo Consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at 315t March 2024, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO.
[Firm Registration No. 101895W]}
Chartered Accountants

ool Uwiee
ROHIT K. CHOKSI
P.
Mem. No. 31103
Place : Ahmedabad UDIN: 240321103 BKDANA 6525

Date : - I, SEP 7024




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Note As at As at
Particulars No. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 3 500.00 1.00
Reserves and Surplus 4 854.85 1,176.91
1,354.85 1,177.91
Non Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings 5 15.38 0.21
Long- Term Provisions 6 19.86 =
35.24 0.21
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 7 8.32 194.34
Trade Payables
To Small Enterprises and Medium Enterprises - -
To Others 8 812.75 1,084.72
Other Current Liabilties 9 169.09 208.16
Short Term Provisions 10 17.15 23.00
1,007.30 1,510.23
Total e £ 38738 £ BB, 34
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 11A 138.87 127.93
intangible Assets 118 208.41 1.81
Intangible Assets under developmeni 11¢ 274.82 142.03
Capital Work in Progress 11D 35.34 0.00
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12 10.49 6.33
Long-Term Loans and Advances 13 143.85 §2.59
Other Non Current Assets 14 12.50 315
824.28 363.84
Current Assets
Trade Receivables 15 687.98 1,693.60
Cash and Bank Balance 16 674.33 154.02
Short Term Loans And Advances 17 5.16 426.56
Other Current Assets 18 205.65 50.33
1,573.11 2,324.50
Total 2,397.39 2,688.34
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date.
FOR G. K. CHOKSI & CO. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
[Firm Regjstation No. 101895W] 2
Chartered Akcountants . u.f:l‘. d
i L C ﬂw A \
ROHI SACHHIN GAJJAER RONAK GAJJAR

K. C};?KS!

Mem. No. 031103

Place : Ahmedabad
Date’ e S E D /

B -

Managing Director
DIN No.06688019

Place : Ahmedabad

ome: oy SEP 2014

Whole-time direcfor & cFo
DIN No. 07737921

s 2l S

v

RINA KUMARI
Company Secretary



SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2024
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Note  For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars No. 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
REVENUE
Revenue from Operations 19 4,037.09 3,509.21
Other Income 20 96.20 ! 8222
TOTAL INCOME 4,133.29 3.5591.43
EXPENSES
Purchase 21 2,524.08 1,836.47
Employee Benefit Expenses 22 891.63 938.02
Finance Costs 23 35.16 35.08
Depreciation & Amortisation 24 34,75 16.30
Other Expenses 25 370.79 242.81
TOTAL EXPENSES 3,856.42 3,068.48
Profit / (Loss) before tax 276.87 522.95
Tax expenses
Current Tax 96.00 148.94
Adjustment related to previous years 4,73
Deferred Tax (4.17) (3.10)
96.56 145.84
Profit / (Loss) after tax 180.31 377.11
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share 26 361 7.54
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date.
FOR AND ON BEH#LF HE BOARD

S&EHHIN GAJJAER ONAK GAJJAR

Managing Director Whole-time director & CFO
Mem. No. 031103 DIN No.06688019 DIN No. 077379821

2
RINA KUMARI
Company Secrelary

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad

bete: o}y SEP 2024 Pate: = L SEP 2074
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March 2024

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year ended
31st March, 2024

For the Year ended
31st March, 2023

A

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit / (Loss} for the year before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation
interest Income on Fixed Deposiis
Interest Income on Loans Given
Training Fees expensed off
Provision for Doubtful Debt
Finance Costs paid
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes In Working capital :
Increase / {Decrease) Trade payables
Increase / {Decrease) Other Current Liabilities
ncrease / (Decrease) Short Term Provisions
Decrease / (Increase) Trade Receivables
Decrease / (Increase) Short Term Loans and Advances
Decrease / (Increase) Other Current & non-current Assets

Cash generated from operations
Taxes Paid (net of refunds)
Net cash from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of PPE, Intangible Asset, Intangible Assets under
development & Capital Work in Progress
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits
Interest Income received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds From / (Repayment of) Borrowings
Finance Cost Paid

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+(B)+({C)
Add / (less) : Change in Foreign Currency Monetary ltem Translation Difference
Account

Net Increase/{Decrease} in cash and cash equivalents

Opening cash and cash equivalents
Closing cash and cash equivalents

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand

Balances with Bank

Other Bank Balances

276.87 522.95
3475 16.30
{0.93) (0.57)

(30.09) -
16.33 -
21.80 (69.05)
35.16 35.08

353.88 504.71

(203.77) 875.00

(39.08) 208.16

(5.85) (139.59)
1,005.62 (988.32)
421.40 (48.06)
{158,95) 174.03
929,37 B1.23
1,283.25 585.93
{157.25) (231.18)
1,126.00 354.75
{436.76) (149.17)
: 0.47
0.93 0.57
30.00 :
(405.73) (148.13)
{170.85) (41.32)
(35.16) (35.08)
{206.01) (76.40)
514.26 130.21
6.05 (5.36)

520.31 124.85

154.02 29.17

674.33 154.02

9.53 7.46

652.55 84.12
12.25 62.44

674.33 154.02




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March 2024

Explanatory Notes to Cash Flow Statement
1 The Cash Flow Statement is prepared under Indirect Method in accordance with the Accounting Standard 3 as prescribed by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
2 InPart A of the Cash Flow Statement, figures in brackets indicate deductions made from the net profit for deriving the cash flow from
operaling activities. In Part B & Part C, figures in brackets indicate cash outflows.
3  Figures of the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year's presentation.

FOR G. K. CHOKS! & CO. FOR AND ON BEHALF OR T@Hiﬁﬂ
[Firm Registration No. 101895W) .«,):."\-:‘
Charte ccountants “ K‘\ /
@1 © ﬂ u}_a [J,q \ / v
RONT K. CHOKS| SACHHIN GAJJAER RONAK GAJJAR
Managing Director Whole-time director & cFo
Mem. No. 031103 DIN No.06688019 DIN No. 07737921
RINA KUMARI
Company Secrefary
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad

Date : r'.lf SEP 20*4 Date : :.L' SEP 2[]24




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

2.1

2.2

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sattrix Information Security Limited was incorporated on 16th September, 2013 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad. The
Company’s registered office is situated at 28 Damubhai colony, Bhaitha, Paidi, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat, India, 380007. The company is primarily involved in helping organizations to protect
their data from unauthorized access against unwanted security threats, Company’s data security
solutions aim to eliminate data privacy risks to make business processes secure and run
smoothly.

The company is a Public limited company having following wholly owned subsidiaries which are
consolidated in accordance with Accounting Standard 21-Consolidated Financial Statements,
the detail of which is as following: -

g Country of Proportion of
b Bl =T Incorporation Ownership Interest
Sattrix Information Security DMCC Dubai, UAE 100%
Sattrix Information Security Inc. USA 100%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statement are prepared and presented in accordance
with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost
convention, on the accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated. This Consolidated
Financial Statement has been prepared as going concern and comply, in all material respects,
with the Accounting Standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Principle of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statement relate to Sattrix Information Security Limited (‘the
Company”) and its subsidiaries. The Consolidated Financial Statement have been prepared on
the following basis:

a)  The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-
line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group transactions in accordance with Accounting
Standard {(AS) 21 - “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

b) As far as possible, the Consolidated Financial Statement are prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are
presented in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.




SATTRIX INFCRMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

23

2.4

2.5

26

27

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements requires certain estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Difference between the actual result and estimates are recognized in the period in which
the results are known / materialized.

Property, Plant & Equipment and Depreciation
All Property, Plant & Equipment are accounted for at cost less depreciation.

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight line basis over the useful
lives of assets specified in Part C of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act 2013 read with the
relevant notifications issued by the Department of Company affairs.

Depreciation on assets acquired / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with
reference to the date of addition / disposal.

In accordance with the provisions contained in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
components of an asset, which have significant cost to total cost of assets and its own useful
life, are required to be depreciated separately over its useful life. Any such component, if
identified by the management based on technical evaluation, is depreciated separately over its
own useful life.

Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible assets purchased are initially measured at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its
purchase price including any costs directly attributable to making the asset ready for their intended use.

Intangible assets are amortised over management estimate of its useful life of 3 years on straight line
basis.

Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value.
An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset
is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Investments

Long term investments are carried at cost less provision, if any, for permanent diminution in
value of such investments.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost or market value. Diminution in value is charged
in the statement of profit and loss account.




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
{Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement

2.8

29

2.10

2.1

Revenue Recognition

Revenue on sales of product is recognised when risk and reward are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those products.

Revenue from contracis priced on time basis are recognised when services are rendered.
Revenue from fixed fee contracts is recognised when milestones are achieved and no
reasonable uncertainty as to its realization exists.

Interest income is recognised on time proportionate basis.

Dividend income is accounted for as and when the right to receive is established.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the year-end are translated at
the exchange rate prevailing on that date, and exchange gain or losses arising have been
transferred to Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are valued at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of transaction. Any gains or losses arising due to exchange difference on
long term foreign currency monetary items are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any gains or losses arising due to exchange differences at the time of setifement of payables are
accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Employee Benefits

. Post-Employment Benefit:
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance and Labour Welfare
Fund as applicable to the company and are accounted for on accrual basis..

. Defined Benefit Plans:
Liability towards gratuity is accrued based on actuarial valuation using the projected Unit
Credit Method at the balance sheet date. Actuarial Gains and Losses are recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.

Taxation

Provision for income-tax is based on the taxable income computed in accordance with the
provision of the Income-tax Act, 1961.
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2.13

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being
the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and
are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized on unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses
based on virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20 - Earnings Per Share prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Provision, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there
is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of
resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the Notes. Contingent
Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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(@

(b)

(c}

{d)

(e)

Share Capital
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
As at As at

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Authorised
Equity Shares
Number of Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 75 00 000 10000
Equity Share Capital (in Rs. Lakhs) 750.00 1.00
[ssued, Subscribed and Paid-up
Equity Shares
Number of Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 50 00 00C 10 000
Equity Share Capital (in Rs. Lakhs) 500.00 1.00

Total : 500.00 1.00
Note :

1. During the period of five financial years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the company has not:

(i) allotted any equity shares pursuant to any contract without payment being received in cash;
(i) brought back any equity shares

2. As on October 24th, 2023, the company has issued bonus shares to ifs existing shareholders at the ration of 499:1 fully paid up.

Reconciliation of number of shares

Number of Equity Shares

Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
Outstanding at beginning of the year 10 000 10 000
Add :
Bonus Share issued 49 90 000 -
Exercise of Share Option under ESOS /ESOP o 3
Shares issued in Business Combination - -

49 80 000 -
Less :
Shares bought back / Redemption etc. - -
Outstanding at end of the year 50 00 000 10 000

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions

The Company has only class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. in the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, in proportion to their shareholding.

Details of Shareholding

Equity Shares

As at 31st March, 2024
Particulars % of Holding No. of Shares
Shareholders holding more than 5% shares
Sachhin Gajjaer 20.00% 10,00,000
Ronak Gajjar 79.99% 39,99,975

Equity Shares

As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars % of Holding No. of Shares
Shareholders holding more than 5% shares

Sachhin Gajjaer 20.00% 2,000
Ronak Gajjar 80.00% 8,000
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(f) Disclosures relating to promoter's holding

Shares held by promoters as on 31st March, 2024

= =
Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares % chan:rer;:;:rmg D
Sachhin Gajjaer 10,540, 00 20000% 42500%
Ronak Gajjar 36,50, 678 TR 4F000%
Shares held by promoters as on 31st March, 2023
Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares % chanseer;::.(l’ring e
Sachhin Gajjaer 2,000 20.00% No Change
Ronak Gajjar 8,000 80.00% No Change
4 Reserves and Surpius
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Surplus / {Deficit) in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as per previous financial statements 953.41 576.30
Add : Profit / (Loss ) for the year 180.31 377.11
Add : Capital reserve fransferred 228.86 -
Add: Prior Period Effect (24.38) -
Less: Utilised for bonus shares* {499.00) -
Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss 839.20 953.41
Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 228.86 67.28
Add: Additions during the year - 161.58
{ ess:Utilised / transferred during the year (228.86) -
Closing Balance - 228.86
Foreign Currency Monetary ltem Translation Difference Account
Opening Balance (5.38) -
Add: Prior Period Effect 14.96 -
Change during the year 6.05 (5.36)
Closing Balance 15.64 (5.36)
Total : 854.85 1,176.91

Note* - As on October 24th, 2023, the company has issued bonus shares to its existing shareholders in the ratio of 499:1 fully paid up.

5 Long Term Borrowings

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Secured
Vehicle Loan From Bank
ICICI Bank 22.60 2.59
Less : Current Maturity of Long term Borrowing {7.22) (2.38)
Total : 16.38 0.21

Nature of Security
The Vehicle loans are secured against the Vehicle.

Terms of Loans
'

hite of Interest {per

Farticulars (Amount in Rs. Lakhs) |Terms of Repayment w S—
Coan am ICICI Bank- MG = 22.39 |Repayment in 60 monthly instalment = 9.30%
Loan fram ICICH Bank- Honda 0.21 |Repayment in 60 Monthhy instabmen | B.85%

* |

12.60
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6 Long Term Provisions
(Amourt in Rs. Lakhs)

As at As at
Particuiars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Provision for Gratuity 19.86 -
Totai : 19.86 -
7 Short Term Borrowings %
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Secured
Current Maturity of Long term Borrowing 7.22 238
Working Capital Loan *
ICIC] Bank 1.10 110.90
8.32 113.28
Unsecured
Loans from Bank
Overdraft facility & Cash Credit From Bank #
ICICI Bank - 81.06
Total : 8.32 194.34

Note* - Working capital facilities from banks are secured by Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of current assets and
receivables of the company and also secured by exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of immovabie properties in the name of
relative of the directors of the company.

Note# - Overdraft facilities of the banks are secured by personat guarantees of promofer (directors) of the company and cross
collateralization by way of extension of equitable mortgage charge over the immovable properties of Directors of the company. As the
security belongs to director of the company hence classified as unsecured loan.
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9

10

Qther Current Liabilities

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Statutory Liabiliies
Accrued Salary & Benefits
Other Payables

Advance from Customers

Short Term Provisions

59.68 101.73

100.59 103.86

8.82 240

- 0.17

Total : 169.09 208.16

[Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Provision for Gratuity

17.15

23.00

Total : 17.15

23.00
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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13

14

SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10.49 6.33
Total : 10.49 6.33
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference of book depreciation and tax depreciation {6.77) 6.33)
(6.77) (6.33)
Deferred Tax Assets
Disallowance ufs. 43(b), allowable on payment basis 14.62 -
Provision for Doutful debt allowed o Actual basis 2.64 -
17.26 -
10.49 (6.33)
Long Term Loans And Advances
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Advance Tax/ TDS Receivable {Net of Provision) 136.48 82.59
Advance to Capital vendors 7.36 -
Total : 143.85 82.59
The amount dues by :
Directors NIL NIL
Officers either severally or jointly with other persons NIL NIL
Firms or private companies in which any director is pariner or director or a member. NIE NIL
Other Non Current Assets
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Security Deposits 12.50 3.15
Total : 12,50 3.16
g
. CHO;
1@/4 R
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED

[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 Cash and Bank Balance

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand 9.53 7.46
Balances with Bank

in Current Accounts 328.35 84.12

in Fixed Deposits (with maturity less than 3 months) 324.20 -
Other Bank Balance

in Fixed Deposits (with maturity from 3 to 12 months) 12.25 62.44

Total : 674.33 154.02
17 Short Term Loans and Advances
As at As at

Particulars ¥1st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Unsecured Loan - Repayable on demand {See note below)

To Related Party (Refer note 28) - 405.91
Deposits - EMD 3.67 19.85
Loans and Advances to staff 1.49 0.80

Total : 5.16 426.56
The amount dues by :

Directors NIL NIL

Officers either severally or jointly with other persons NIL NIL

Firms or private companies in which any director is partner or director or a member. - 405.91
Note : Details of Loan Given

As at As at
ey el G Burposs 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Sattrix Software Solutions Pvi. Lid. 1.30% Working Capital - 405.91

18 Other Current Assets

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Prepaid Expenses

Interest Accrued and Due
Advance to Vendors

Bailance with Revenue Authorities

Other Receivables
70, CHO
\ G \¢c\\
L))
o 7]

Total :

87.20 14.61
77.95 -
0.48 0.26
0.38 -
39.64 35.486
205.65 50.33




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 Revenue from Operations

For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Sale of Product 2,849.92 1,805.86
Sale of Services 1,187.17 1,703.35

Total : 4,037.09 3,509.21

Disaggregated information

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars 3tst March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Sale of Product
License 2,849.92 1,805.86

Total : 2,849.92 1,805.86

20 Other Income

For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
interest Income 35.97 7.64
Net Gain / (Loss) on Foreign Currency Fluctuation 2 5.53
Miscellaneous Income 3.81 69.05
Prior Period Income (Refer Note 34) 56.42 -
Total : 96.20 82.22

21 Purchase of Product

For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Purchase of Product 2,524.08 1,836.47
Total : 2,524.08 1,836.47

Disaggregated revenue information

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Purchase of Product
License ] 2,524.08 1.836.47

Total : 2,524.08 1,836.47

22 Employee Benefit Expenses

For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Salaries & Wages 1,149.75 889.57
Contribution to provident & other funds 31.22 48.45
Less:
Allocated to Intangible Assets under development {289.34) &
Vi Total : 891.63




Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

23

24

25

26

SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED
[Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Finance Costs

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
interest Expenses 26.85 30.20
Other Borrowing Costs 8.31 4.88

Total : 35.16 35.08
Depreciation & Amortisation
For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars e =: = 3:1st March, 2024 31st March, 20_23
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 24.51 15.19
Amortisation of Intangible Asset 10.25 1.11

Total : 34.75 16.30
Other Expenses
For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Legal & Professional Fees 65.52 50.22
Office & General Expenses 48.34 38.87
Rent Expense 29.86 18.88
Traveliing & Conveyance Expense 85.47 67.73
Sales and Business Prommation 39.44 7.23
insurance 7.32 9.87
Repairs and Maintenance 531 11.81
Rates & Taxes 7.06 0.33
Auditor's Remuneration 5.67 045
Subscription and Membership Expense 16.91 3262
Provision for Doubtful Debts 21.80 -
Net Loss on Foreign Currency Fluctuation 412 -
Prior Period Expense {(Refer Note 34) 29.14 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 4.82 4.80

Total : 370.79 242 .61
Particulars of Earning per Share
Forthe Yearented | For the Year ended

Particulars

Profit / (Loss) after tax (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Weighted average Number of equity shares (Refer note below)

Nominal value of the share (Amount in Rs.)

Basic / diluted earnings per share (Amount in Rs.)

31zt March, 2024

315t March, 2023

180.31
50,00,000
10.00
3.61

377.11
50,00,000
10.00
7.54

Note: Considering the impact of bonus share issued during the year retrospectively.




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consoclidated Financlal Statements
27 Gratuity

(a) Gratuity
The Company offers gratuity plan for its qualified employees which is payable as per the requirements of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable fo employees on retirement or on termination of
employment. in case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting.

{b) Defined Benefit Plan

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows :

< Valuation
Particulars
As at March 31, 2024
Discount Rate 7.11%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 10.00%
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars gL
Gratuity
Changes in the present vaiue of obligation
1. Present value of obligation (Opening) 22.16
2. Interest cost 2.19
3. Current service cost 3.59
4, Benefits Paid (1.89)
5. Actuarial (gain)/ loss gn obligations 1.06
6. Prior Period Expense 7.81
7. Present value of Obligation {Closing) 34.91
Changes in the fair value of plan ass:
1. Present value of plan assets (Opening)
2. Expected retun on plan assets @
3. Fund Added {Contributions) -
4. Benefits Paid 2
5. Actuarial Gain / {Loss) on the Plan Assets -
6. Fair Value of Plan Assets (Closing) a
Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
assets
1. Present value of funded obligalion as at the year end 34.91
2. Fair value of plan assets as at year end .
3. Funded {Asset)/ Liability recognised in the balance sheet 34.91
Expenses recoghised in the profit & loss account
1.Current service cost 3.59
2. Interest Cost 2.19
3. Expected return on plan assets 3
4. Net Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized 1.06
5. Prior Period Expense 7.81
6. Expenses recegnised in statement of Profit and loss 14.64
Note - 1. Above Gratuity Disclosure only pertains o the Holding Company i.e. Sattrix Information Security Limited.

2. The company till previous year has accounted gratuity on cash basis due to which no comparative figures have been reported.
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SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consclidated Finamtial Statements

29

30

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

2023-2024 2022-2023

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of each accounting year.

1.62 NIL

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year.

NIL NIL

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 (As amended).

NIL NIL

The amount of interest accrued and remanirg unpaid at the end of each
accounting year; and

NIL NIL

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, uniil such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disalowance as a deductible expenditure under,
section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 (As amended).

NIL NiL

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available

with the company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Additional information as required under Schedule lil to the Companies Act, 2013 of enterprise consolidated as subsidiary.

For the year ended on 31st March 2024

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Net Assets i.e. I;:::I::Isssets minus Total Share in Profit{Loss)
Name of the Enterprise e
As % of Consolidated As % of Consolidated
Neot Assets e Share in Profit/{Loss) AE

Parent

Sattrix Information Security Limited 89.02% 1,217.78 148.74% 268.18
Subsidiaries

Saitrix Information Security Inc. -0.05% (0.66) -36.43% (65.68)
Sattrix Information Security DMCC 11.03% 150.85 -12.31% (22.20)

Total: 100.00% 1,367.87 100.00% 180.30

For the yoar ended on 31st March 2023

[Asmaint in As. Lakhs)

Net Assets i.e. Total Assets minus Total

Share in Profit/{Loss)

. Liabilities
Name of the Enterpriso |
As % of Consolidated | As % of Consolidated
- Net Assets { Algourt Share in Prodig|Loss) Anount

Farent |
Satirix Information Security Limited 80.62% 949.60 98.73% 372.30
Subsidiaries
Satirix Information Security Inc. 0.20% 2.31 1.65% 6.23
Sakirix Information Security DMCC 0.71% 8.35 -0.38% (1.43)
Lezs: Consolidation Adjustments | 18.48% 217.67

Total:. 100.00% 1,177.92 100L.00%,| I77.11




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formarly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

31

32

33

{a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

Statement pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act 2013, read with rule 5 of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 in the prescribed Form AOC-1 relating to subsidiary companies/Entity

{(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Country Dubai, UAE USA Dubai, UAE USA
Reporting Currency AED usD AED usb
Exchange Rate 22,61 82.78 22376 82.22
Share capital 11.1 1.42 1.42
Reserves and Surplus 139.14 {(2.08) 8.35 373
Total Assets 163.99 104.47 244.06 231.22
Total Liabilities 13.14 105.13 235.72 226.06
Turnover/Total Income 188.17 4572 240.35 271.43
Profit / {Loss) Before Tax {22.20) (65.68) 230 8.36
Tax Expense / {Credit) - - - 212
Profit / (Loss) after tax {22.20) (65.68) 230 6.24
Proposed dividend and tax thereon NIL NIL NIL NIL
Investments NIL NIL NIL NIL
(except in case of investment in the

% of shareholding 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Contingent Liability and Commitments

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Financial Year

2023-24 2022-23
A. Contingent Liabilities - -
B. Commitment 133.53 -

Other Regulatory Information

Title deeds of Immovable Property

The group is not required to report the details of title deeds of immovable propery in consolidated financial statements as per the
Guidance Nofe on Division | — Schedule Hl to the Companies Act, 2013, issuad by ICAI

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Group has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets during any of the year reported.

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
The Group has not granted any loans or Advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties except as mentioned

below:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs|

Loans and advances granted to Related Parties

Type of Borrower As at 31st March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023
Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanding - 405.91_
Perceniage to the total Loans and Advances in the nature of loans = 1D0U00%|

Capital- Work- in Progress (CWIP)

As at 31st March 2024

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

CWIP

Amauni of CWIP for a period of

Less Than 1 Yoar |

Projects in progress

12 Yoar

Total

| 2-3 Fipar

a5,

Projects temporarily suspended

|
i

Total

|
35.34|
-

3534

The Group does not have any Capital- Work- in Progress as at 31st March, 2023.

W
2

P




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

{e)

{g)

{h)

i

i}

(k)

U]

{m)

intangible assets under development
The Group does not have any intangible assets under development as at the end of the year except as mentioned below:

As at 31st March 2024
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Intangible assets under Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of Total
development Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2.3 Year
Projects in progress 274.82 - - 274.82
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Total 274.82 - - 274.82

As at Year ended 31st March, 2023
(armsount in Rs. Lakhs)

Intangible assets under Amount in intangible assetis under development for a period of Total
development Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Yoar
Projects in progress 142.03 - 14201
Projects temporarily suspended | N A
Total 142.03 4 - 142.03|

Detalls of Benami Property held

The Group does not hold any benami property as defined under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
the rules made thereunder. No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made there under.

Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets
The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns
! statements filed by the Company with such banks are materially in agreement with the books of accounts.

Wiiful Defaulter

The Group has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender during any of the year
reported.

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Group does not have any transactions with struck off companies during any of the year reported.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Group is not required to report the details of registration of charges or satisfaction with registrar of companies in consolidated
financial statements as per the Guidance Note on Divisicn 1 — Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, issued by ICAL

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Group is in compliance with number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the
Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Approved scheme of arrangements

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during any of the year reported.

Utillsation of Borrowed funds and share premium

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or kind of funds) to any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the intermediary shatl:

(i) directly or indirectly lend ar invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Group have not received fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party {Uitimate Beneficiaries} or




SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY LIMITED [Formerly Known as SATTRIX INFORMATION SECURITY PRIVATE LIMITED]

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

{n} Undlisclosed Income
The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during any of the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

{0} Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during any of the year.

{p) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Group does not fail under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly is not required to spend
any amount for CSR.

{a} Ratios
The Group is not required to report Analytical Ratios in consolidated financial statements as per the Guidance Note on Division | -
Schedule ill to the Companies Act, 2013, issued by ICAl.

34 Prior Period Income and Expense
Prior Period Income (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particular Amount Nature of Income
Interest income on loan 56.42 |Interest income on loan granted fo group company not accounted in earlier years
granted
Prior Period Expense {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particular Amount Nature of Expense
Audit fees 5.00 |Statutory audit fees for FY 22-23 and 21-22 not accounted in earlier years
Gratuity Expense 7.81 |Gratuity expense of earfier years as per actuarial valuation
Training Fees 16.33 |Expensed off during the year which has been incomrectly capitalised in earlier year

35 Code on Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 {'Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and posi- employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come
into effect has not been nofified. The company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact
after the Code becomes aflaiive

a6 Statement of Management

{a}  The cumrent assets, loans and advances are good and recoverable and are approximately of the values, if realized in the ordinary
courses of business unless and to the extent stated otherwise in the Accounts, provision for all known liabilities is adequate and not
in excess of amount reasonably necessary. There are no contingent liabilities except those stated in the notes, if any.

(b} Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement read together with the schedules fo the accounts and notes
thereon, are drawn up so as to disclose the information required under the Companies Act, 2013 as well as give a true and fair view
of the statement of affairs of the Group as at the end of the year and resulis of the Group far the year under review.

37 All amounts in Consolidated Financial Statements are represented in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

38 The previous year's figures have been regrouped, reworked and reclassified where ever necessary.
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